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Selection of our showhomes in the UK and Ireland

The Company’s 71st Annual General Meeting will be held on
Friday 3rd October 2008 at The Conrad Dublm, Dublin 2 at 10 30am




Results in Brief

Expressed ;n €000 £'000 Sterfing Equivalent
{except per share data) (except per share data)
2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenue 180,334 192,201 129,804 130,178
Profit before taxation 16,794 45,272 12,088 30,663
Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the parent 12,081 34,389 8,696 23,292
Earnings per share 42 93c 118 13c 30.90p 80 01p
Dwidends paid per share 36 00c 36 00c 25.91p 24 38p
Assets per share 844c 846¢ 664p 577p
Gearing Nil Nil Nil Nil

For the purpose of the above the following translation rates have been used for Profit and Loss items
2007 €100c Stg 67 73p
2008 €100c Stg 71 98p
The rates used for conversion of Balance Sheet tems are the rates at 30 Apnl 2007 and 30 Aprld 2008

2007 €100c  Stg 68 24p
2008 €100c  Stg 78 63p
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Chairman’s Statement

The results for the year ended
30t April 2008 reflect the
impact of the credit crunch on
our business since August last
year. The credit squeeze is, at
the time of writing, showing no
signs of easing and a difficult
year is in prospect.

The Group reports a profit for the year
of €16.8 million before taxation against
€45.3 millon in the previous vyear.
Shareholders’ funds of €207.9 million
represent €8.44 per share and include net
cash balances of €39.8 milion. Earnings
for the year were 42.93 cents per share
and the Board i1s not recommending a
dimdend for consideration at the Annual
General Meeting in October.

The profits have been matenally impacted by an imparment
charge of €20 6 millon against land and work in progress
ansng from the depressed trading condtions This
represented circa 11% of the gross inventory as at 30 April
Whilst we believe these imparments are prudent based
on current market conditons, if the market significantly
detenorates, further write-downs may be needed in future
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HOUSEBUILDING

The Group's housebulding dwsion completed 716 sales
(UK 467, Ireland 249) at an average price of €222,000
and contnbuted €10 5 million to our results

United Kingdom UK ftradng over the penod as a
whole was satisfactory, however, the trading environment
became steadily more difficult as the year progressed The
new year 1 off to a slow start with no sign of improvement
In the cicumstances we expect to complete fewer units
this year At the year end the company owned and with the
benefit of planning permission for 990 plots

Ireland: In lreland a good result was achieved as sales
made in early 2007 were completed A nohiceable upturn
n sales at the start of 2008 faded towards the end of
the pencd Current sales are at very low levels i ine with
generally reported market condihons We now own land
with planning permission for 1,230 plots

Czech Republic In Prague bulding work 1s now well
ahead on our project n Sivenec Thirty exght reservabions
have been taken and subject to compliance with all
admimistrative procedures, we are hopeful of achieving
some completions this year

A legally valid bulding permit for our project in Andél has
now been 1ssued and we plan to start in early 2009




Chairman’s Statement

PLANT HIRE

The plant ture dwision reported operating profits of €2 8
million on a turnover of €20 6 million In addikon a further
gan of €1 3 million resulted from the disposal of an M&J
property

Early trading this year was encouraging, however, In
recent weeks signs of slowing actvity have been seen
and inevitably more difficult trading will be encountered
during the year

Rental Income ansing from the lethng of surplus space at
Group property was €499,000

SHARE BUY BACKS

Further to the authority granted at the Extraordinary General
Meeting on 15th November 2007 the company has during
the penod under review purchased 4,342,531 shares at
a cost of €25,452,000 The purchase completed the
program under the resolution granted and all the shares
were cancelled There are now 24,626,992 shares in 1ssue
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Continued

DIRECTORS, MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

There was no change to the Board of Directors during the
course of the year As always the progress of the Group
15 a result of the combined efforts of all the employees
I, on behalf of the shareholders, thank my colleagues on
the Board together with all the directors, management and
staff for their hard work and efforts during the year

THE FUTURE

Dunng the past year credit condions in both Ireland and
Britain ightened considerably and the resutiing contraction
in the mortgage market has severely impacted the Group
In particular falling house pnices have undermined the value
of our land bank with the resuling imparment charges
expenenced this year The outlook 1s very uncertain and
in these circumstances sensibly maxmising the cash
resources at the disposal of the Group 15 essential Fresh
profitable trading opportunites may emerge towards the
end of this financial year and the Group should be well
placed to avail of them

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

! look forward to seeing you all at our Annual General
Meeting on 3rd October and wish to bring to your attention
all other special business n the notice of that meeting

YAl

Charles H Gaflagher, Executive Chairman




Five Year Financial Summary

IFRS IFRS Insh GAAP Insh GAAP Insh GAAP
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Revenue 180,334 192,201 204,544 206,520 199,663
Operating profit 15,076 43,675 45,421 55,672 59,260
Finance income 1,818 1,609 1,800 1,916 945
Finance costs {100) (12) (155} (111 -
Profit before taxation 16,794 45,272 47,062 57,477 60,205
Income tax expense (4,713) {10,883} {11,103} {13,069} (13,359)
Profit attributable tc equity
shareholders of the parent 12,081 34,389 35,959 44,408 46,846
Earnings per share (basic and diluted} 42.93c 11813c 113 78c 130 31c 137 47c
Dwidends paid per share 36.00c 36 00c 34 00c 31 00c 24 50c
Shareholders' funds 207,940 245,053 225,200 241,396 199,592

Earnings Per Share
{Eurg Cents)
Basic and Diluted

150
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40

Dividends Paid Per Share
{Eusro Cents)




Group Information

ABBEY PLC
Reg No 9245 Republic of Ireland

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants

SECRETARY & REGISTERED OFFICE
Dawid J Dawson CA, 25/28 North Wall Quay, Dublin 1

BANKERS
Allied Insh Banks plc
Barclays Bank pl¢

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Investor Services (Ireland) Limited
PO Box 954, Heron House, Corng Road,
Sandyford Industnal Estate, Dubbn 18

SOLICITORS
A&L Goodbody

STOCKBROKERS
Davy Stockbroker
Arden Partners

NOMINATED ADVISOR
JRE Davy, trading as Davy

TRADING PLATFORMS
Insh Enterpnise Exchange
Alternative Investment Market
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Board of Directors

CHARLES H. GALLAGHER (48) M.A., MSc.

A Director of Abbey plc since 1986, Mr Charles Gallagher
was apponted Executve Charman in May 1993 He 1s a
past president of the HBF (UK House Buiders Federation)
Mr Gallagher 1s also a director of a number of other companes
including Gallagher Holdings Limtted, Matthew Homes Limited
and Charles Wilson Engineers Limited

BRIAN R. HAWKINS (63) (BRITISH) BSc (Eng)

Mr Hawkins joned the Abbey Group i 1990, was
Managing Oirector of Abbey Developments Limited from
May 1993 to December 2006 and 1s now Managing
Director of Abbey Group Limited He was coopted to
the Abbey plc Board in June 1997 He holds no other
drectorships other than those within Abbey plc and its
subsidianes

ROBERT N KENNEDY (55) (BRITISH) BSc {Econ)

Mr  Kennedy jomed the Abbey Group m 1996 and
15 Managing Dwector of M&J) Engmneers Limted He was
coopted to the Abbey plc Board m December 1997 He holds
no other directorships other than those within Abbey plc and its
subsichanes

RICHARD J SHORTT (60)

Mr Shortt joined the Abbey Group m 1994 and 15 Managing
Drector of HKingscroft Developments Limited He was
coopted to the Abbey plc Board m May 2002 He holds no
other drectorships other than those within Abbey plc and s
subsidianies
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DAVID A, GALLAGHER » A {47} B.A., MSc,
{NON-EXECUTIVE)

Mr Gallagher was appomnted to the Abbey plc Board in May
1993 Mr Gallagher 1s a director of a number of gther companies
ncluding Gaflagher Holdings Limited, Matthew Homes Limited
and Charles Wilson Engimeers

J. ROGER HUMBER + A (65) {BRITISH)

BSc {(Econ), Hon D Tech

(NON-EXECUTIVE)

Mr Humber was appointed to the Abbey plc Board mn
December 1999 He was previously Chief Executive of the
HBF (UK House Builders Federaton) from 1979 to 1999
Mr Humber 15 a director of a number of other companies
including Magnum Fine Wines plc and PE Jones (Contractors)
Limited and its subsidianes He is Chair of Circle Angha Housing
Group, a registered social landlord

JOHN F. HOGAN + A (68) B Comm, FC.A
{NON-EXECUTIVE)

Mr Hogan was apponted a nonexecutive director of the Group
n December 2001 He 1s a former Managing Partner of Emst
& Young in Ireland and was a member of its global board He 1s
currently a nonexecutive director of C & C Group pic, Butterfield
Umbrella Fund plc, Prudential Intemational Assurance plc and
other private companies

{s) Member of Audit Committee
{4} Member of Remunerabon Commitee




Directors’ Report

Year Ended 30 April 2008

The directors submut herewtth their report and audrted financial
statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2008 which are set out
on page 17 to 46

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND REVIEW OF THE
DEVELOPMENTS OF THE BUSINESS

The Group’s pnncipal actwvbies are bulding and property
development, plant hire and property rental

The profit after taxation amounted to €12,081,000 Dmdends of
36 00 cents per share, absorbng €10,124,000 of profit have
been pad dunng the vear, leaving retained profit of €1,957,000
which has been fransferred to reserves After the share
repurchase of €25,452,000 and other movements as detalled in
the “Changes in Equity” on page 18, the net assets of the Group
have reduced from €245,053,000 to €207,940,000

The directors are not recommending a dvdend for consideration
at the Annual General Meeting in October 2008

A fist of pnncipal undertakings and the nature of ther business 1s
contained in note C4 to the Company balance sheet Geographic
and dwsional analyses of tumover are given in note 7 to the
financial statements

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Measurement of the Group's performance 1s consistently applied
and control 1s exercised by Group and dvisional management
The Group uses the following key performance indicators to
evaluate its performance
1 Financial Performance Compared to Budget
The Group has a budgeting system in place whereby actual
performance 15 measured aganst budget, both financial
and nondinancial, on a meonthly reporting timetable
2 Uit Reservations
The Group reviews the weekly net house sales
reservations and weekend site wisitor numbers
3 Development Site Profit Margin
The Group evaluates the gross profit margin of each
development site on a monthly basis
4 Machine Count
The Group reviews the machine count for each plant hure
depot on a weekly basis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Qur housebullding operations completed 716 sales (UK 467,
Ireland 249) with tumover of €159 2 milion generatng an
operating profit of €10 5 milion The comparabve figures for
the previous year were 677 sales (UK 457, lreland 220) with
tumover of €1706 millon generating an operatng profit of
€40 7 mion

The profits have been matenally mpacted by an mparment
charge of €20 6 millon (2007 N} aganst land ansing from
the depressed market condions Whilst we believe these
impairments are prudent based on current market condrtons, if
the market significantly detenorates further wnite-downs may be
needed in the future

Overall the housing dmsion achieved completions running ahead
of last year Margins continue to beimpacted by the steadily more
difficult radng condrbons encountered over the pencd end At
the year end the Group owned and controlled land with the benefit
of planning permission for the supply of 2,300 plots

The jont venture generated an operating profit of €144,000

M&J reported operatng profits of €2 8 muhon (2007 €25
millon} on turmover of €20 6 milion (2007 €21 1 mufion)
The Group's iterest i a property was vested to the London
Development Authonty under a compulsory purchase order
during the year at a value of €2 1 millien , resuthng n a net gamn
of €1 3 milion recorded in the ncome statement

Rental income ansing pnmanty from the letbng of surplus space
at Group property was €499,000 (2007 €475,000}

At the year end total equiy stood at €207 9 milkon (2007
€245 1 million), whiist net cash balances stoed at €39 8 million
{2007 €32 1 milion}

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Group enters the cument year with a forward order book
sufficient to mantain reasonable trading n the very short term
During the last two months market condiions have contnued to
detenorate and current sales rates are at very low levels in e
with generally reported market condibons In the circumstances




Directors’ Report

Continved

it 15 quite hkely that the housmg dwision will defiver matenally
fewer houses this year

In Prague bulding 15 now quite advanced on our first phase in
Slivenec with forward sales achieved

M&J, our plant hire dmsion, 1s off to a far start, however, m
recent weeks the first signs of slowing actwity have been seen
and inewitably more difficult trading will be encountered dunng
the year

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

The Group terminated nts contract for the purchase of a
development site on 27 June 2008 as a result of the failure to
meet all contractual condibons of the transacton, which existed
at the balance sheet date The contract pnce for the ste of
€1,737,000 has been reversed from land WIP with related [and
creditors of €1,572,000 also reversed The Group had paid a
refundable deposit amounting to €165,000 prior to the balance
sheet date which is now ncluded in trade debtors Prelminary
works carnied out by the Group on this site with a total value of
€122,000 have been written off with the taxation charge for the
year adjusted accordingly

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Insh Company law requres the Group to give a descnption of
the principle nsks and uncertantes which it faces Abbey plc's
busmess, n which it 1s engaged, 15 constantly evolving and the
st below of the pnncipal nsks for the Group are constantly
changing

The Group is engaged in speculative development, which
15 by its nature highly nsky Occasional substanbal losses
are a cychcal feature of s busness,

m The Group operates in a very compettive market and
therefore 1t 1s essenbal that the Group continues to
compete successfully,

@ Any reduchon in economic growth in the countres
which the Group operates may adversely affect the
Group’s revenue and margins,

@ The Group's performance will be affected by fuel and
raw matenal pnces and the cyclcal changes of the
producers of these raw matenals,
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m The Group ts subject to substanbal laws, regulatons and
standards such as environmental, health and safety and
bullding regulations, which could result in addibonal costs
related to compliance with these laws and regulations,

W At present the Group operates in three currencies and
adverse changes m foraign exchange rates relatve to
the euro could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance,

B Any adverse economic interest rate changes will mpact
on the Group

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Hawving receved the requrred notfications, the followng held

more than 3% of the issued ordinary shares at 9 July 2008

Number % of ssued

of shares share capial

Gallagher Holdings Limited 10,166,544 4] 28%
FMR LLP and Fideity international

Lirruted and thew direct

subsicianes, being nonbeneficial

hotders 3,400,000 1381%
I1G Investment Management Ltd 973,960 395%
Secumes Trust Limited 899,503 365%
Insh Life Investment Managers 769,653 313%

Axa Investment Managers UK Ltd 737,995 300%

DIRECTORS
Mr John F Hogan refires in accordance with Article 98 and will
be offenng himself for re-election

DIRECTORS’ AND SECRETARY'S INTERESTS

The nterests of the directors and secretary and ther famiies
i the share caprtal of the Company and the Group at 30 Apnl
2008, were as follows

Number of Shares
2008 2007
Charles H Gallagher 25,500 25,500
Richard J Shortt 15,500 12,500
David A Gallagher 3,000 3,000
John £ Hogan 3,000 3,000




Directors’ Report

Continued

None of the directors hold shares m a nonbeneficial capacrty
and no changes occurred in the above holdings between 30
Aprit 2008 and 9 July 2008 There have not been any contracts
or arrangements with the Company or any subsidiary dunng
the year in which a director of the Company was matenally
inferested and which have been significant in relabon to the
Group's business

BOOKS AND RECORDS

The directors are responsible for ensunng that proper books and
accounting records, as outined n Section 202 of the Companies
Act 1990, are kept by the Company To achieve this, the directors
have appointed appropnate accountng personnel i order to
ensure that those requirements have been compled with

The books and accounting records of the Company are
mantaned at Abbey House, 2 Southgate Road, Potters Bar,
Hertfordshire, EN6 50U, England Returns are made 1o the
registered office in accordance with Section 202(6) of the
Companies Act 1990

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We are fully committed to operating ethically and responsibly
m relabon to employees, customers, neighbours and aii other
stakeholders

Employees
The Board together with the directors, thanks the management
and staff for their hard work and efforts during the year

The average number of employees durmg the year s set out In
note 11 to the financial statements

Disabled Employees

The Group gwve every consideration to applications for employrment
from disabled persons where the requirements of the job may be
adequately fulfiled by a handicapped or disabled person

Where existing employees become disabled, ¢ 15 the Group's
policy wherever practcable to prowde contnung employment
under normal terms and condrions and to prowde traming and
career development and promotion wherever appropnate
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Employee Involvement

The continuing Group policy with regard to employee consultation
and mvolvement 1s that there should be effective communication
with all employees who, subject to practcal and commercial
considerations, should be consuted on and volved m
decisions that affect ther current jobs and future prospects The
achievement of this policy has to be treated flaxably n accordance
with the varying circumstances and needs of companies in the
Group but, in all cases, the emphasis is on communicabon at the
local level Details of the Group's financial results are crculated
each half and full year and penodic staff meetmgs are also held
to discuss vanous aspects of the Group's business

Health and Safety

The Group pays particular adherence to health and safety matters
The Group has implemented appropnate safety guidelines in its
Insh subsidiaries as requred by the Safety, Health and Welfare
Work Act, 1989

Environment

The Group pays particular adherence to applicable emaronmental
legislabion and request that our employees and subcontractors
are aware of ther responsibilibes in this regard The Group
supports vanous chames and local events

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Your attention 1s drawn to the nobice of meeting which sets out
matters of ordinary and special business to be considered at the
Annual General Meeting

CAPITAL GAINS TAX
The quoted pnce of the ordinary share on 6 Apnl 1974 as
calculated for capital gains tax in Ireland was €78 7c (IR62p)

AUDITORS

The audtors, Emst & Young, Chartered Accountants, will
contmue in office n accordance with Secton 160(2) of the
Companies Act, 1963

On behalf of the Board, Sth July 2008
CH GALLAGHER Charman

BR HAWKINS Director




Remuneration Report

The remuneration of the execubve directors 15 determined by the
Remunerahon Commuttee which compnses all of the nonexecutive
directors The written terms of reference have been approved by
the Board and are arned to ensure that remuneration packages
are competitive and that they will attract, retain and motvate
execubve directors of the quality required The nonexecutive
directors’ remuneration i1s determined by the Board

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Group does not operate any share oplion or longterm
incentive schemes

The Executive Charman's service contract contams a notice
period of two years wiich was recommended by the Committee
n view of the importance of ths role The three remaining
executive directors have a notice penod of one year

The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the year 1s as follows

Salary and {1) Benefits 2008 2007
Fees bn Kind Total Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
Executive Directors
C H Gallagher 936 37 973 967
B R Hawkins 388 a7 435 437
R N Kennedy 197 35 232 243
R J Shortt 335 26 361 341
Totals 1,856 145 2,001 1,988
Non-Executive Directors
D A Gallagher 60 - 60 45
J R Humber 60 - 60 45
JF Hogan 60 - &0 45
Totals 180 - 180 135
(1) Benefits In Kind comprise defined benefit pension contnbubons and other benefits and emoluments
PENSIONS

Three executive directors were members of The Abbey Group Limited Pension and Life Assurance Scheme durng the year Non
executive directors do not parbcipate in the Group’s pension scheme There are two (2007 two) directors to whom retirement benefits
are accruing under a defined benefit scheme at 30 Apnl 2008 One director had contnbubons to 2 defined contmbubon scheme durnng

the year Oirectors pension arrangements are as follows

Defined
Defined Benefit Contribution
Increase In

Accrued Accumutated

Pensionable Pension Transfer Accrued
Serice Dumg Value Of The Pension Group
Name Age Years The Year hcrease 30 Aprd Contribubons
€000 €000 €000 €000
B R Hawkins 63 17 5 400 89 -
R N Kennedy 55 11 3 {29) 29 -
R J Shortt 60 - - - - 99
30 Apnl 2008 8 371 118 99
30 Apnl 2007 12 242 113 92
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Corporate Governance Report

PRINCIPLES

The Board 15 committed to mamtanng high standards of
Corporate Governance to ensure that the Company 1s headed by
an effective Board which can lead and control the business

THE BOARD

The Board 1s currently compnsed of the Executive Charman,
three executive directors and three nonexecutve directors The
Board considers all norrexecutve directors capable of exercising
independent judgement They all have long expenence and share
equat obligations to the Company

The roles of the Executve Charman and Chief Executve are
combined in one mdmdual The drectors believe that the
Company benefits from consolidatng the expenence and
knowledge of the present Executive Chairman whilst ensuring
that there are experienced nonexecutive, and executive directors
for each operabng dwsion, to whom concerns may also be
conveyed

The Executive Chairman's serice contract contans a nobce
penod of two years which was recommended by the Remuneration
Commuttee in view of the /mportance of this role

Executive directors are not requred to submit themselves for
re¢lection, apart from at ther first Annual General Meeting
Ther electon is covered by Articles 87 and 94 of the Company’s
Articles of Associabion

The directors belleve the Company benefits from allowing
executive directors to perform ther duties whilst benefiting from
congnuity of performance Execuiive directors are subject to the
same provisions as o ther removal as other directors of the
Company

One third of the nonexecutve directors retire by rotabon each
year

Nonrexecutive directors are not appointed for specific terms and
therr elechon 1s covered by Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Associaion Nonexecutwe directors are required to submit
themselves for reelechon by rotation and ther re<lection is
covered by Article 98 of the Company’s Articles of Association

ABBEY PLC, ANNUAL REPORT 2008, PAGE 13

The directors believe that the Company benefits from the greater
expenence and knowledge of the business gamed by directors
with long service The present nonexecutives do not have formal
letters of appointment

The Board meetngs are held regulary and at least four
tmes each year with agendas sent out in advance of each
meeting There is a schedule of formal matters reserved for
Board approval All drectors have access to advice from the
company secretary and independent professional adwsors at the
Company’s expense

The Board has established Audit and Remuneraton
Commitiees

The Board does not have a formal Nominatons Committee
All Board nominations are tabled under “Forma! Matters to be
Referred to the Board” and consideration of appointments are
made by the Board as a whole

AUDIT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEES

Both the Audit and Remuneration Committees compnse all the
non-executive directors with Mr Roger Humber as the Charman
The Audit Committee meets not less than twice each year and
the Remuneration Commuttee when required

Both Committees have wntten terms of reference

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

There are regular meetngs with the Company’s principal
nvestors Announcements of results are sent promply to ail
shareholders All mvestors are welcome at the Annual General
Meebing where they have the opportunity to ask questons
cf the Board The Executve Charman at the Annual General
Meebing also gives a statement on the current trading conditions
Shareholders are both welcome and encouraged to raise any
concemns with any director at any une




Corporate Governance Report

Continued

INTERNAL CONTROL

The dwectors are responsible for ensunng that the Group
mamntains a system of internal contral This system is designed
to prowde reasonable but not absolute assurance aganst
matenal misstatement or loss

Key elements of this control system, including internal financial
control, are

B An orgamsation structure with clearly defined nes of
responsibility and delegahon of authorty,

W A budgetng system with actual performance being
measured agamnst budget on a regular basis,

& A revew of the key business nsks relevant to
the Group’s operatons These nsks are reviewed
annually to ensure that they remamn appropnate to
the business and the current trading environment,

W Conirol procedures to address the key business nsks
which include policies and procedures appropnate to
each of the mam operating subsidiaries The Board
considers the adequacy of the control procedures
at the same tme as it reviews the key business
nsks Certam prescribed matters are reserved for
Board approval,

B A management review of the operaton of the
system,

W At all Board and Audit Committee meetngs Internal
Control 15 a main agenda tem to be considered,

M The Audit Committee monitors the effectiveness of
the Group's Internal Control System

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's Intemal
Control System up to and including the date of approval of the
annual report This review mchudes a consideraton of issues raised
in management letters recenved from the external auditors

The above elements help to prowde assurance, but the Board
recognises that the business it 1s engaged in 15 constantly
evolving and 1t accepts that the Group’s intemal contro! must
evolve with it In thus respect, the Board i1s willng to alocate
the necessary resources to implement new controls to cover
new areas of nsk f addiional controls are deemed beneficial In
assisting the Group to aclieve ts objectives
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The Board has considered the need for an internal audtt function
and conacluded that, due to the effective levels of procedures
already n place, there i1s currently no requirement for an intemal
audit funchion dunng the year under review, although tius matter
will be reviewed regularty

GOING CONCERN

After making enquines, the drectors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in prepanng the financial statements




Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities In Respect of the Financial Statements

Company law n lreland requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year, which give a true
and far view of the state of affars of the Parent Company
and of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that penod

In prepanng those Group financial statements the directors
are required to

W select sutable accounting policies and apply them
consistentty,

M make judgements and estmates that are reasonable
and prudent,

m comply with applicable Internabonal Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Umon, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements, and

B prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis, unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the
Group will continue in business

The considerations set out above for the Group are also required
to be addressed by the Directors m prepanng the financial
statements of the Parent Company (which are set out on
pages 43 to 46) n respect of which the applicable accounting
standards are those which are generally accepted in the Republic
of freland

The Directors have elected to prepare the Parent Company's
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice n lreland (nsh GAAP) comprising the
financial reporting standards issued by the Accounting
Standards Board and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants i Ireland, together with the Companies Acts,
1963 to 2006
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The Directors are responsible for keeping proper books of
accounts, which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any
time, the financial postion of the Parent Company and which
enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the
Group are prepared in accordance with applicable International
Fmancial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European
Urion, and comply with the prowsions of the Compares Acts,
1963 to 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties




Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Abbey plc

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements {the
“financial statements”) of Abbey plc for the year ended 30 Aprl 2008
which compnse the Group income Statement, the Group and Parent
Company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and the related notes 1
to 34 (group) and C1 to C8 {company) These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting pobcies set out therein

This report 1s made solely fo the company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with sechon 193 of the Compames Act, 1990 Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them n an auditors’
report and for no cther purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibdty to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opimions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors are responsible for the preparaton of the group financial
statements i accordance with applicable Insh law and Internatonat
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adepted by the European Union,
and for the preparation of the parent company financial statements in
accordance with applicable Insh law and Accounting Standards 1ssued
by the Accounting Standards Board and promulgated by the insttute of
Chartered Accountants inIrefand (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
n Ireland} as set out in the Statement of Drrectors' Responsibibes

Our responsibility s to audi the financial statements in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Audting (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give
a true and fair view and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 We also report to you our opinion
as to whether proper books of account have been kept by the company,
whether, at the balance sheet date, there exists a financial stuaton which
may require the convening of an extraordinary general meetng of the
comparny, and whether the mformation given n the Directors’ Report 15
consistent with the financial statements In addibon, we state whether
we have obtamed all the informaton and explanations necessary for
the purposes of our audt and whether the company balance sheet 1s in
agreement wath the books of account

We also report to you f, n our opiien, any information speciied by law
regarding directors' remuneration and other transachons is not disclosed
and, where practcable, nclude such information in ouwr report.

We read other mformation contamed i the Annual Report and consider
whether it 1s consistent with the audited financial statements The other
information comprises only the Charman's Statement, Directors’ Report,
and the Corporate Governance Statement. We consider the implications
for our report f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
matersal mconsistencies with the financial staterments Qur responsibiibes
do not extend to any other information

ABBEY PLC, ANNUAL REPORT 2008, PAGE 16

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audt n accordance with International Standards on
Auditng (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practces Board An
audrt includes exammabion, on a test basis, of ewdence relevant to the
amourits and disclosures i the financial statements | also mchides an
assessment of the significant estmates and judgments made by the
directors 1n the preparabon of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and company’s
crcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audt so as to obtan all the informaton
and explanations winch we considered necessary i order to provide us
with sufficient ewdence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from matenal misstaternent, whether caused
by fraud or other rregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of informaton in the
financial statements

OPINION

In our opmion the group financial statements give a true and far view,
m accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion, of the
state of affars of the group as at 30 April 2008 and of its profit for the
year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006, and the parent company financial
statements gve a true and far vew, in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice in treland, of the state of affairs of the
company as at 30 Apnl 2008 and have been properly prepared n
accordance with the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006

We have obtaned all the information and explanatons we consider
necessary for the purposes of our audit In our opinion proper books of
accoutt have been hept by the company The company balance sheet s
in agreement with the books of account.

In eur opmion the information gven in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent
with the financial statements

In our opimon, the company balance sheet does not disclose a financial
situation which under section 40{1) of the Companies {Amendment) Act,
1983 would require the convening of an extraordinary generat meeting
of the company

Emst & Young
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Dubln
9 July 2008




Group Consolidated Income Statement

Year Ended 30 Apnit 2008

e €500 €600
Revenue 180,334 192,201
Cost of sales
- normal {132,881) (135,492)
- impatrment charge on land 8 {20,599) -
Gross profit 26,854 56,709
Administrative expenses {13,228) (13,034)
Gain on property disposal 8 1,306 -
Share of joint venture profit before taxation 144 -
Operating profit 15,076 43,675
Finance income 9 1,818 1,609
Finance costs 9 (100) (12)
Profit before taxation 10 16,794 45,272
Income tax expense 12 (4,713) (10,883}
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the parent 28 12,081 34,389
Earmings per share - basic 14 42 93¢ 118 13c
Earmngs per share - diluted 14 42 93¢ 118 13¢

Approved by the Board on 9 July 2008
CH GALLAGHER, Chairman
B R HAWKINS, Director
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Group Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Year Ended 30 April 2008

Capad
tssued Share Revalmtion Redemption Curency Retained
Copal Premium Reserve Reserve Fund  Transtabon Eamings Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Atinbutable to equity holders of the paresnt
At 1 May 2007 9,270 13,321 8673 3,113 1,517 209,159 245,053
Foreign currency translation - - {757) - (14,356) - (15113}
Reduction in revaluation surplus - - (187) - - 187 -
Actuana! gain on Group defined benefit pension obhigabons - - - - - 2,012 2012
Deferred tax habifity relating to actuanal gan on
Group defined benefit pension obhgations - - - - - 517 {517)
Purchase of company shares {1,389} - — 1,389 - (25,452) (25,452)
Total ncome and expense for the year
recognised directly In equity {1,389) - {944) 1,389  [(14,356) (23,770) (39,070
Profit for the year - - - - - 12,081 12,081
Total ncome and expense for the year (1,389) - (944) 1,389 (14,356} {11,689} {26,989}
Dwdends paid {note 13) - - - - - {10,124) (10,124}
At 30 Apri 2008 7,881 13,321 7,729 4502 (12,839) 187,346 207,930
Group Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Year Ended 30 Aprl 2007
Capital
lssued Share Revaluation  Redemphon Currency Retained
Capltal Premam Reserve Reserve Fund Translation Earnings Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 £000 €000 €000
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
At 1 May 2006 9,455 13,321 9,557 2,888 - 191,234 226,495
Foreign currency translation - - 111 - 1,517 - 1,628
Reduchon n revatuation surplus - - {995) - - - (995)
Actuanial gan on Group defined benefit pension obligabons - - - - - 465 465
Deferred tax labiity relating to actuariat gain on
Group defined benefit pension obligations - - - - - {140 (140)
Purchase of company shares {225} - — 225 - {6,360) (6,360)
Total ncome and expense for the year
recognised directly in equity {225) - (884) 225 1,517 (6,035) (5,402)
Profit for the year - - - - - 34,389 34,389
Total ncome and expense for the year (225 - {884) 225 1,517 28,354 28,987

Dmdends pad {note 13) - - - - - {10,429) {10,429)
At 30 April 2007 9,270 13,321 8,673 3113 1,517 209,159 245,053

No note of histencal cost profits and losses has been included as the amounts mvolved are not signdficant.
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Group Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 30 April 2008

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and egupment
Investment property

Investment in joint venture

Investments

Defined benefit pension scheme surplus

Current assets

Trade and other receables
Inventones

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Current liabihties

Trade and other payables
Income tax payable
Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Non-current habiirhes

Deferred taxation
Prowsions

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equrty attnbutable to equity holders of the parent

Issued capital

Share premiurn

Revaluahon reserve

Other reserves

- Capital redemption reserve fund
- Currency translation

Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Approved by the Board on 9 July 2008

CH GALLAGHER, Chairman
B R HAWKINS, Director
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Note

15
16
17
18
32

19
20
21

22
23
24

26
27
27

26
27
28

2008 2007
€000 €000
31,785 36,079
2,392 2,392
2,512 2,398

6 7

3,988 2,433
40,683 43,309
10,168 13,135
168,086 232,721
39,807 32,095
218,061 277,951
258,744 321,260
(45,557) {65,948)
(304) {4,532)
(2,120 (2,562)
(47,981) (73,042)
170,080 204,909
{2,751) (3,025
(72) (140)
(2,823) (3,165)
{50,804) (76,207)
207,940 245,053
7,881 9,270
13,321 13,321
7,729 8,673
4,502 3113
(12,839) 1,517
187,346 209,159
207,940 245,053
258,744 321,260




Group Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Year Ended 30 Apnil 2008
Note 2008 2007
€000 €000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 16,650 45,272
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Non cash:
Depreciation 7,060 7,108
Other non cash items 94 (170
Movement in pension benefit asset {28) 647
Impairment charge on land 20,599 -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2,846) (1,482}
Finance ncome {1,818) (1,609)
Finance costs 100 12
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease (increase) in inventones 29,604 {19,061)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other recewvables 1,671 {4,998)
Decrease in creditors and prowisions (15,685) {27,651)
Income taxes paid (8,948) {11,283)
Net cash flow from operating activities 46,453 {13,215)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of plant, property and equipment {9,346) (10,892)
Sale of plant, property and equipment 5,338 3,233
Finance mcome 1,818 1,609
Net cash outflow from investing activities (2,190} (6,050}
Cash flows from financing activities
Cost of share buy-backs {25,452) {6,360)
Equity dvidends paid {10,124) {10,429)
Finance costs {100) {12)
Net cash outflow from financing actvities (35,676) (16,801)
Net increase {decrease) i cash and cash equivalents 8,587 (36,066)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 32,095 67,745
Net foreign exchange differences (875) 416
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 21 39,807 32,095
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements 30 April 2008

1 AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consobdated Financial Statements of Abbey ple for the year ended 30 Apnl 2008 were authonsed for 1ssue n accordance with a resofution of
drectors on § July 2008 Abbey plc 1s a imited company ncormporated in Ireland The company's shares are fisted on the X and AIM Stock Exchanges
The pnncipal actvbes of the Group are described m Note 7

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (FRS")

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations 1ssued by the Internabonal Accounting Standards
Board {IASB} and the Internabonal Financial Reporting Interpretabons Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to ts operahons and effective for
the accounting penods begmming 1 May 2006 The effects of IFRS an the restated comparative figures is shown in note 34

The Group has adopled the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC mterpretations dunng the year Adopton of these revised standards and
interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or financial posthon of the Group in the current or prior periods In certain cases,
they did however give nse to addibonal disclosures

* IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures

* 1AS 1 Amendment - Presentation of Financial Statements Capital Disclosures
* [FRIC B Scope of IFRS 2

* IFRS 9 Reassessment of Embedded Dermvatives

* IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and fmpairment

*IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The principal effects of these changes are as follows

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures

This standard requres disclosures that enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the signficance of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of the nisks ansing from those financial Instruments  The new disclosures are included throughout the financial statements While there
has been no effect on the financial postion or result, comparative mformation has been revised where necessary

[AS 1 Amendment Presentation of Financial Statements Caprtal Disclosures
This amendment requires the Group to make new disclosures to enable users of the financial statemnents to evaluate the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital

IFRIC 10 Intenim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group adopted IFRIC 10 as of 1 May 2006, which requires that an enty must not reverse an imparment loss recognised n a previous interim
penod m respect of goodwil or an investment i edher an equity iInstrument or a financial asset carned at cost As the Group had no impairment losses
previously reversed, the mterpretaton had no impact on the financtal postion or performance of the Group

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements of Abbey pic and all ts subsidianes {the “Group®} have been prepared In accordance with International Financial
Standards (“IFRS"), as adopted for use in the European Union, which compnise standards and interpretabons approved by the Internabonal Accounting
Standards Board {IASB}

IFRS as adopted by the European Umon differ m certain respects from IFRS as issued by the IASB However, consoiidated financial statements for the
financial years presented would be no different had IFRS as 1ssued by the JASB been applied References to IFRS hereafter should be construed as

references to IFRS as adopted by the European Umion

An explanation of how the transtion to IFRS has impacted the reported financial performance and financial postion of the Group 1s provded i note 34
to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements 30 Apnil 2008

4 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group financial statements have been prepared on the listoncal cost basis except for fand and buildings and svestment property which has been
measured at far value The accounting policies which follow set out these policies which apply in prepanng the financial statements for the year ended
30 April 2008

The Group financial statements are presented n Euro and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand euro (€000} except where otherwise
ndicated

5 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group financial statements include the financial stetements of the parent undertaking and all subsidianies and the Group's share of the profits of the
joutt venture Inter-company balances, transactions and profits thereon have been eliminated i prepanng the Group financial statements The financial
year end of the Group's subsidianes are coterminus The resuits of the joint verture relate to the year ended 31 March 2008

6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interests m joint venture
The Group has a contractual arrangement with a third party which represents a joint venture This takes the form of an agreement to share control over
another entity

The jomt venture 15 established through an interest in a company and the Group recognises its iterest i the entity's assets and habilibes using the equiy
method of accountng Under the equity method, the interest in the joint venture 15 carmied m the balance sheet at cost plus post acquistion changes
n the group's share of s net assets, less distnbutions receved The Group income statemnent reflects the share of the jomntly controlled entity's results
after tax

There has been no goodwill ansing from the joint venture

Financial statements of the jontly controlled entty are prepared within the tme penod around the Group's balance sheet date permitted by IAS 31
‘Interests n Joint Ventures' The Group ceases to use the equity method on the date from which  no longer has joint control over, or signdficant mfluence
n, the jont venture

Revenue Recognition

Revenue 15 recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured
Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration recerved Revenue represents the value of goods and services supphed to external customers
and excludes nter-group sales and value added tax The following critena must also be met before revenue 1s recognised

Housing
Revenue on housing developments and the respective profits are recogmised when the property 1s structurally complete and legally transferred to the
purchaser

Plant hire
Revenue comprises charges to third parbes, net of value added tax, for the hire, rental, sales and maintenance of construchon plant, velicles, tools and
portable buldings, al ntra group transactions hawng been ehminated

Property rental
Revenue 1s recognised in the penod the rent 1s due from third partes, net of value added tax All intra group fransactions having been eliminated

Interest mcome
Revenue 15 recogmised as nterest accrues in the penod

Inventenes
Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Building land
Buiding land 15 stated at the lower of cost and net reaisable vatue less an appropnate proportion relating to plots sold i the case of estates i the
course of development.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether butding land 1s imparred in accordance with LAS2 “Inventories” if any imparment has occurred
then the write down 15 recognised as an expense in the Income Statement
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements 30 Apnil 2008

€ ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Work m progress
The cost of uncompleted and unsold new properties comprnises direct labour and material costs No profits are taken unitl houses are conveyed on legal
completron to third parties

Raw matenals
The cost of raw matenals comprises net voice pnce on an average cost basis

Trade and other recervables

Trade recewvables are recognised and carried at the lower of ther onginal nvoiced value and recoverable amount Where the tme value of money 15
matenal, receivables are carned at amorbsed cost. Provision 1s made when there is objectve evidence that the Group wil not be able to recover balances
in fll Balances are written off when the probability of recovery 15 assessed as being remote

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and shortterm deposits in the balance sheet compnse cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an eniginal maturty of three months
or less

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equwvalents consist of cash and cash equvalents as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are stated at therr far value Trade payables on extended terms are recorded at their far value at the period end, with any discount to
far value amortsed over the period of the credrt term and charged to finance costs

Taxes

Current ncome tax

Current income tax assets and habilites for the year are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorbes The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax
Deterred income tax 1s recogmised on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabikhes and therr carrying amounts in the
financial statements, with the followng exceptions

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiznes and joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and # 1s probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, and

= deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be avalable aganst which deductble
temporary diferences, carned forward tax credits or tax losses can be uthised

Deferred income tax assets and labimes are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset s
realised or Yiabilty settied, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date Deferred income tax assets and habiibes are offset, only f a
legally enforcement nght exists to set off current tax assets against current tax habilibes, the deferred income tax relates to the same taxaton authority
and that authority perrmits the Group to make a single net payment

income tax 15 charged or credited drectly to equity d it relates to tems that are credited or charged to equity Otherwmise income tax 1s recognised in
the income statement.

Foreign Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented i euros, which 15 the Company's functional and presentation currency Each entity in the Group
determines its own funcbonal currency and tems included n the financial statements of each entrty are measured using that funchonal currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are nmially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilbes
denominated i foreign currencres are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruting at the balance sheet date with all differences taken to
the mcome statement. Differences on monetary assets and hiabiiines that form part of the Group’s net nvestment in a foreign operation are taken dwectly
to equity untd the disposal of the net nvestment, at which tme they are recogrised n profit or loss Non monetary tems that are measured in terms of
histoncal cost n foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the inmal transacheons Non monetary tems measured at
far value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the far value was determined
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements 30 Apnil 2008

6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and equpment 15 stated at cost, less accumutated depreciation and accumulated impawment losses Cost compnses the aggregate amount paxd
and the farr value of any other consideration given to acqurre the asset and includes costs directly attributable to malking the asset capable of operating
as intended

Depreciabon 15 provided on all property, plant and equipment, other than land, on a straight fine basis over the expected useful Ife as follows

= Buidngs 50 years
* Plant, machinery and transport 3to 8 years

The carrying amount of property, plant and equpment are reviewed for mpairment ff events or changes in crreumstances ndicate the carryng value
may not be recoverable, and are written down immediately to their recoverable amount Useful ives and residuat values are reviewed annually and where
adustments are required these are made prospectvely

An temn of property, plant and equpment 15 derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to anse from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss ansing on the derecognriion of the asset 15 included n the ncome statement in the period of derecognition

Leases

Group as a lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in property and are depreciated over ther estmated useful lves Rental income 15 recogrised on
a straight ine basis over the lease term

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reportmg date whether there 1S an indication that an asset may be impaired If any such indicaben exists, or when annual
mpairment testing for an asset 1s requrred, the Group makes an eshmate of the asset's recoverable amount An asset’s recoverable amount 1s the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and s value in use s determined for an indmdual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash mflows that
are largely dependant of those other assets or group of assets Where the carring amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 1s
considered mpared and 1s written down to its recoverable amount In assessing value n use, the estmated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of money and the nisks specific to the asset In
determining far value less costs to sell, an appropnate valuabon model 1s used Impawment losses on cominuing operations are recogmsed in the income
statement in those expense categonies consistent with the function of the impared asset

An assessment 15 made at each reporing date as to whether there is any wdication that previously recogmised impairment losses may no longer exist
or have decreased I such indication exists, the recoverable amount i1s eshimated A previously recogmised impairment f0ss 1s only reversed ff there has
been a change in the estmates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last imparment loss was recogmsed If that 1s the case the
carrying amount of the asset i1s increased to rts recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the carnang amount that would have been
determmuned, net of depreciabion, had no impairment loss been recognised for the assetn prior years Such reversal 1s treated as a revaluabon increase

After such a reversal the depreciation charge 1s adjusted in future peniods to allocate the asset's revised carmang amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaning useful kfe

Investrnent Property
Certan of the Group's surplus properties are classified as mvestment propertes, being held for longierm mvestment and to eam rental mcome

investment properties are measured indially at cost, mcluding transaction costs Subsequent to inthal recognrion, investment properties are stated at
far value, which reflects market condibons at the balance sheet date Gains or losses ansing from changes in far value of investment propertes are
ncluded in the income statement in the penod n which they arise

Investment properties are derecognised when they have been disposed of or when the investment property 15 permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit 15 expected from its disposal

Any gams or losses on the retrement or disposal of an mvestment property are recognised in the ncome statement in the year of retrement or
disposal

Pensions and other post retirement benefits
The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme, which requires contribuhons to be made to a separately admimstered fund The UK scheme was
closed to new entrants on 1 January 2001 from which tme membership of a defined contnbubon plan 1s avadable

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan 1s determined using the projected unit method, which attnbutes entrlement to benefits to

the current period (to determine current service cost) and to the current and pnor peniods (to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation)
and 15 based on actuanal advice Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements 30 April 2008

6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change i present value of scheme obhgahons resultng from the passage of tme The
expected return on scheme assets 1s based on an assessment made at the beginming of the year of long-term market returns on scheme assets,
adpsted for the effect of fair value of the plan assets of contrnbutions recenved and benefits paid dunng the year The difference between the expected
return on scheme assets and the mterest cost is recogmsed in the income statement as other finance revenue or cost,

The Group has applied |AS19 to recognise actuanal gans and losses in full in the Statement of Changes m Equity

The defined benefit pension scheme i the balance sheet compnses the present value of the defined benefit abligation (using a discount rate based on
high quality corporate bonds), less any past service cost not directly recognised and less the fair value of the scheme assets out of which obligatons
are to be settled drectly Far value 1s based on the market pnce informabion and i the case of bonds the pubhished bid price

Contribubons to defined contribubon and personal employee plans are recogmsed i the mcome statement m the penod t which they become
payable

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present obhgation {legal or constructive) as a resutt of a past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of
resources embodyng economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a refiable estmate can be made of the obligation Prowisions are
meastred at the expected expendriture required to settle the obligation and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s material

Where the Group expects some or all of a prowisions to be reimbursed, the rembursement 1s recognised as a separate asset but only when recovery 1s
virtually certain The expense relating to any provision 15 presented m the mcome statement net of any remmbursement

Accounting Judgements and Estmates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estmates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for
assets and labitbes as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the year

In the process of applying the Group's accounting polictes, management has made the following judgements, apart from those nvolwng estmatons,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recogrised m the financial statements

Inventory valuation
The Group measures inventonies at the fower of cost and net realisable value Inventones include development land, work in progress and completed
units for sale

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there i1s an indicabon that siventories may be mpared H any such indication exists, or when
annual mparment testing for inventones are required, the Group makes an estmate of the inventones recoverable amount Where the carrying amount
of nventory exceeds 1ts recoverable amount, the inventory 1s considered mpaired and 1s written down to its recoverable amount In determuning net
reahsable valug, an appropriate assessment 15 made based on external valuations and the expected overall return on development srtes

An assessment 15 made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indicabion that previously recogmised imparment losses may no longer exst
or have decreased ¥ such mdicabon exsts, the previously recognised impairment loss 15 reversed

In determining the value of work in progress the Group applies a standard costing process for cost of sales The Group estmates the development cost
for sites and the length of tme for the consinichon process and vanances recognised in the income statement.

Employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan 1s determined using actuanial valuabons The actuanal valuation involves making assumptions about discount
rates, future salary ncreases, expected rates of return on scheme assets, mortality rates and future pension increases Due to the long term nature of
this plan, such estmates are subject to significant uncertainty
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6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

New Standards and interpretations Not Applied
|ASB and IFRIC have 1ssued the following standards and interpretations with an effective date after the date of these financial statements

International Accountmg Standards {IAS / IFRSs) Effective Date*
IFRS 2 Amendment to IFRS 2 - Vestng Condibons and Cancellations 1 January 2009
IFRS 3 Busmess Combinations (revised January 2008) 1 July 2009
IFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {revised September 2007) 1 January 2009
1AS 23 Borrowing Costs (rewsed March 2007} 1 January 2009
IAS 27 Consohdated and Separate Financial Statements (Rewsed January 2008) 1 July 2009
imernational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {[FRIC}

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008
IFRIC 14 |AS19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimmum Funding Requirements and thewr Interacton 1 July 2008

IFRS 8 requres disclosures based onnformation presented to the board This 1s not expected to change the business segments about which infermaton
15 already gven We do not expect to have customers that indmadually account for more than 10% of total revenues

14823 has been rewsed to require capitahisation of borrowing costs when such costs relate to a qualifyng asset A qualfying asset 15 an asset that takes
a substanbal peniod of hme to get ready for its mtended use or sale

Whilst the rewised IAS 1 will have no wmpact on the measurement of the Group's results or net assets it 15 likely to result in certain changes in the
presentation of the Group’s financial statements from 2009 onwards

The Orectors do not anhcipate that the adopton of the remaining standards and interpretations wil have a matenal impact on the Group's financial
statements in the penod of nrtial apphcation

* The effective dates stated here are those given in the onginal IASB/IFRIC standards and mterpretabions As the Group has elected fo prepare thew financial statements
n aceordance with FRS as adopted by the European Unron, the application of new standards and interpretations will be subject to thew having been endorsed by the
EUwva the EU Endorsement mecharesm In the maonty of cases this wall result i an effective date consistent with that given m the orignal standard or nterpretation
but the need for endorsement resincts the Group's discrebon to adopt early standards

7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Tumover, cost of sales and operating profit are derved from continuing actnbies  The Group operates in three markets beng Ireland, the United Kingdom
and the Czech Republic The principal actvties of the Group are budding and property development, plant hire and property rental These dvisions are
the basts en which the Group reports its pnmary segment information

— Buiding and Property Development — Plant Hre Property Rental ~ UnaSlocated GROUP
treband  Unted Kingdom  Czech Republic  UntedXingdom  Iretand and
Ursted Kingdom
30 Apnl 2008 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Incomae Statement Information
Turnover 64,467 94,747 - 21,234 499 - 180,947
Inter segment - - - 613) - - 613}
64,467 94,747 - 20,621 499 - 180,334
Cost of Sales
-normal 48,174)  {69,793) (60}  (14,854) - - {132,881)
- impairment charge on land {18,138} (2,461) - - - - {20,599)
Adminisiratrve expenses {3,288} {5,615) {330) (2,995) - - {13,228
Gan on property disposal - - - 1,306 - - 1,306
Share of joint venture profit 144 - - - - - 144
Operating {loss) profit {4,989) 15878 (390) 4,078 499 - 15,076
Finance income/costs 666 1,021 31 - - - 1,718
income tax credt (expense) 350 (4,240) - {715) {108} - {4713
{Loss) profit before taxation 13,973) 12,659 (359) 3,363 391 - 12,081
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7 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION [CONTINUED}
— Buskding and Property Development — PartHre PropetyRental  Unalocated GROUP
rebd  Untad Kingdorn  Czech Republic  Uneed Kingdom  relond and!
Uneted Kingdomn

30 April 2008 €000 €000 £000 €000 €000 £000 €000
Balance Sheet Information
Sepment Assets 83,602 83,237 13,984 33,203 2,393 - 216,419
Segment Liabilthes (14,498)  {28,437) {2,602) {5,167} {100) - {50,804)
Segment Net Assets 69,104 54,800 11,382 28,036 2,293 - 165615
Investment n Jont Verture 2,512 - - — - - 2,512

71,616 54,800 11,382 28,036 2,293 - 168,127
Investments - 6 - - - - [
Cash and cash equivalents 35,990 463 2,550 {54) - 898 39,807
TOTAL NET ASSETS 107,606 55,269 13,932 27,942 2,293 898 207,940
Other Segmental Information
Depreciabon 277 224 - 6,559 - - 7,060
Profit on disposal of fixed assets “4n {6 - {2,799} - - (2,846)
Capital expendrture 169 428 - 8,749 - - 9,346
30 April 2007
Income Statement Informaton
Turnover 59,471 111,111 - 21,776 475 - 192,833
Inter segment - - 632) - - {632)

59,471 111,111 21,144 475 - 192,201
Cost of Sales (40,225}  {79,489) - (15,778) - - (135,492)
Admimstrative expenses 2,717} {7,109) (361} {2,847} - - (13,034)
Operatng profit 16,529 24513 (361} 2,519 475 - 43675
Finance income/costs 387 1,180 30 - - - 1,597
Income tax expense {2,190} (7,990} - (703) - (10,883}
Profit before taxation 14,726 17,703 (331) 1,816 475 - 34389
Balance Sheet Information
Segrnent Assets 117,113 120,574 10,079 36,601 2,393 - 286,760
Segment Liabilhes (25366)  143.812) {12 (6,917) (100} - (76,207)
Segment Net Assets 91,747 76,762 10,067 29,684 2,293 - 210,553
investment in Jomt Venture 2,398 - - - - - 2,398

94,145 76,762 10,067 29,684 2,293 - 212,951
Investments - 7 - - - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 19,862 11,429 91 154 - 559 32,095
TOTAL NET ASSETS 114,007 88,198 10,158 29,838 2,293 559 245,053
Other Segmental Information
Depreciation 315 321 - 6,472 - - 7,108
Profit on disposal of fxed assets (137) {15) - {1,330} - - {1,482
Caprtal expendrture 160 386 - 10,346 - - 10,892
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8 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

2008 2007

Cost of salos €000 €000
The cost of sales charge for the year 15 armved at after chargng

Write down of nventones to net realisable vaiue 20,589 -

Over the last number of months the Group have closely monitored the carrying value of our land nventories m Ireland and the Untted Kingdom as a
resutt of uncertam market condibons and a weakening sales emvironment. Ansing from these considerabions we estmate that the ongminal cost of certan
development sites have suffered mpairment in the amount of €20,593,000 As such, in accordance with IAS 2 “Inventories”, the Group have recorded
an impairment wrrte down to bring the carrpng value of inventories recorded i the balance sheet to the lower of cost and net realisable value

Gam on disposal of property 1,306 -

Duning the year a gain resulted from the disposal of a property vested under a Compulsory Purchase Order As such, this gain is not indicative of a trend
n financial performance

9 FINANCE INCOME 2008 2007
€000 €000
Bank interest recervable 1,818 1,609
FINANCE COSTS 2008 2007
€000 €000
Interest payable on bank overdraft (29) (8)
Other finance on defined benefit pension scheme (Note 32) (71) 4
{100) 12)
10 PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 2008 2007
€000 €000
The profit on ordinary actvbes before taxation 15 arnved at afler {crediing) charging
Profit on disposal of tangble fixed assets (2,846) (1,482}
Write down of land to net realisable value 20,599 -
Operating lease rentals
Rent of bulding 135 137
Hire of plant and machinery 535 424
Depreciation 7.060 7,108
Audrtors’ remuneration
- statutory audit of the Group and subsidiaries 133 127
further adwisory services 38 -
taxation services 24 15
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11 EMPLOYMENT
The average number of persons employed by the Group, including executive drectors, in the financial year was 262 (2007 275} and ts analysed by
class of busmess as follows
2008 2007
Number Number
Bulding and property development
Ireland 39 50
United Kingdom 66 64
Plant ture and rental
United Kingdom 157 161
262 275
Employment costs compnse 2008 2007
€000 €000
Wages and salanes 12,661 12,753
Socal welfare costs 1,317 1,345
Other pension costs 600 1,181
14,578 15,279

Included in other pension costs are €420,000 (2007 €951,000} m respect of defined benefit schemes and €180,000 (2007 €230,000) n respect

of defined contribubon schernes

Detalls of the Directors' emoluments are set out in the Remuneration Report on page 12

12 TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 2008 2007
€000 €000

The tax charge based on the profit on ordinary actvties compnses

Irish Corporation Tax at 12 5%

Current (350) 2,190

United Kingdom Corporation Tax at 29 84% (2007 30%)

Current 5,486 8,669

Total cumrent corporation tax 5136 10,859

Deferred tax originabng and reversal of timing differences (423) 24

Tax charge to the income statement 4,713 10,883

Tax relating to tems charged or credited to equity

Deferred tax on defined benefit pension scheme (517) (140)
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12 TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES {(CONTINUED)
Factors affecting current tax charge

The foliowing table relates the applicable Republic of reland statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate of the Group, obtaned by compuing the tax charge
as a percentage of the profit on ordmary actnahes before taxaton

2007
{% of profit before taxabon)

Insh corporation tax rate 125 125
Higher tax rates on UK profits and passwve income 218 111
Loss relef clam (23) -
Rolover relief on gan on property disposal 23 -
Qther ting differences 0o 04
306 240

The effectve tax rate 15 dependent on taxable profits made in the related nisdiction the Group operates The UK Corporation tax rate decreased from
30% to 28% on 1 Apnl 2008

The movement on deferred tax relates primarily to the ongination and reversal of tming differences as detailed in note 25 and includes timing differences
on accounting for IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

13 DIVIDENDS 2008 2007
On Ordmary Equity Shares €000 €000
Pard ordmary
Dmdend of 12 00 cents per ssued ordinary share 3171 3,476
{2007 12 Q0 cents per share}
Paid ordmary
Dnndend of 24 00 cents per 1ssued ordinary share 6,953 6,953
{2007 24 00 cents per share)

10,124 10,429
Ordmnary dividends proposed {memorandum disclosure)
The directors will not propose a final dvidend for 2008 (2007 24 00 cents per share) - 6,953

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE Basic and Diluted

Earmings per share has been calculated by reference to the werghted average number of shares in issue of 28,139,295 (2007 29,109,967) and to the
profit on ordinary activibes after taxation amounting to €12,081,000 (2007 €34,389,000)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group Land and Plant and

buildings machinery Transport Total

€000 €000 €000 €000

Cost or fair value
At 1 May 2006 15,845 41,054 4,442 61,341
Translation adjustment i81 601 59 841
Addions 2 9,792 1,098 10,892
Disposals - {8,176} {800) {8,976}
Transfer to stock {1,255) - - {1,255)
At 30 April 2007 14,773 43,271 4,799 62,843
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Land and Plant and
buidings machmery Transport Totat
€000 €000 €000 €000
Translation adustment {1,265} {5,656) {5671 {7,488)
Addions - 8,465 881 G,346
Disposals (778) {7,633) {924) {9,335)
At 30 Aprd 2008 12,730 38,447 4,189 55,366
Accumulated depreciabion
At 1 May 2006 - 24,029 2,457 26,486
Translaton adjustment - 363 32 395
Charge for year 148 6,087 873 7.108
Disposals - (6,532) (693) {7.225)
At 30 April 2007 148 23,947 2,669 26,764
Translaton adustment 21} (3,057 (323) (3,401}
Charge for year 143 6,080 837 7,060
Disposals - {6,076) {766) (6,842)
At 30 Aprit 2008 270 20,894 2417 23,581
Net baok amounts
At 30 Apri 2008 12,460 17,553 1,772 31,785
At 30 Apnil 2007 14,625 19,324 2,130 36,079
Plant and machinery includes assets held for e with a cost of €36,430,000 (2007 €40,917,000)
and accumulated depreciation of €19,332,000 (2007 €21,962,000)
2008 2007
€000 €000
Land and building compnses
Freehold property 11,926 14,159
Long leasehold property 534 614
12,460 14,773
The histoncal cost of land and buildings amounts to
Land and buldings 5,798 6,072
16 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 2008 2007
€000 €'000
Fair value
At} May and 30 Apnl 2,392 2,392

The above nvestment properties represent retall units which are let to third parties under operating leases

Investment properties situated n Ireland were mdependently valued by Allen & Townsend, Chartered Surveyors on an open market basis
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17 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

Abbey Holdings Limited helds a 50% utterest i the allotted share caprtal of Pontedenia Limited, whose registered office is at 9 Abbey House, Mam Street,
Clonee, Co Meath The mvestment compnses 1 ordinary share of €1 25 The financial statements of Pontedena have been prepared for the year ended
31 March 2008 Pontedena had no active trading actvihes dunng 2008 or the prior year

The share of the assets, liabilites, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entrty at 31 March 2008 and for the years there ended are
as follows

2008 2007
€000 €000
Share of the jont venture's balance sheet:
Current assets 3,404 3,294
Current babiites (892 {896)
Share of the net assets 2,512 2,398
Share of the jomt venture's resuft
Revenue 150 -
Administrabve expenses {7} -
Finance costs 1 -
Profit before tax 144 -
Tax expense {30 -
114 -
18 INVESTMENTS 2008 2007
€000 €000
Ordinary shares at cost
Non-isted company 6 7
19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2008 2007
€'000 €000
Amounts faltng due within one year
Trade recewvables 7,634 5658
Other recevables 670 1,667
Value added tax 236 3,849
Prepayments and accrued income 1,628 1,961
10,168 13,135

Trade recenvables are generally on 3090 days’ terms and are shown net of a provision for impairment At 30 April 2008 trade recervables amournting
to €875,000 {2007 €670,000) were older than the Group's standard credtt terms but not deemed to be impaired At 30 Apnl 2008 trade recevables
with a value of €242,000 {2007 €138,000) were impairred and fully provided for The movement i the bad debt provision 15 not considered matenal,
nor does it relate to signficant indwidual recevables

20 INVENTORIES 2008 2007
€000 €000

Building land and roads 121,661 175,415
Work n progress 45,806 56,677
Raw matenals 619 629
168,086 232,721
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2008 2007
€000 €000
Cash at bank and i hand 6,680 574
Shortterm deposits 33,127 31,521
39,807 32,0585

Short term depost are made for varyng periods of between on day and one month depending on the mmediate cash requirements of the Group The
far value of cash and cash equivalents 1s €39,807,000(2007 €32,095,000) The Group had undrawn borrowing faciibes amounting to €16,700,000

at the year end (2007 €16,700,000)

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2008 2007
€000 €000

Amounts faling due within one year

Trade creditors 24,436 26,718

Advances recewed from joint venture 3,336 3,191

Amounts outstanding on land 3,286 21,878

Untted Kingdom income tax 185 237

Social welfare tax 170 197

Value added tax 1,977 530

Qther creditors 4,109 3,848

Accruals and deferred ncome 8,058 9,349

45,557 65,948

Terms and condtions of the above financial habihes

* Trade creditors are nomnterest bearing and are normally settled between 3090 day terms

* Amounts outstanding on land are nominterest bearing and settiement 15 dependent on terms of the contract

* United Kingdom income tax, social welfare and value added tax are normally settled on 30 day terms

* Uther payables are nominterest bearing and settlement is dependent on the terms of the payable

23 TAX LIABILITIES 2008 2007
€000 €000

Corporation tax 304 4,532

24 PROVISIONS 2008 2007
€000 €000

Maintenance prowvisions

At 1 May 2,702 2,273

Ansing dunng the year 1,055 1,802

Utihsed (686) (839}

Reversal of unused amounts {879) (484}

At 30 Aprd 2,192 2,702

Analysed as

Current habilies 2,120 2,562

Non-current abites 72 140
2,192 2,702

The maintenance provision represents the best estimate of the Group's iability under warranbes given to purchasers for repar and maintenance work on
houses sold based on past experience of required repars 1t 1s expected that most of these costs will be incurred in the next financial year
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25 DEFERRED TAXATION 2008 2008 2008 2008 2007
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000

Pension Accelerated Other Total Total

Ohligation Depreciaton

At 1 May 730 1,040 1,255 3,025 2,944
Translation adpustment {141 (127} {100} {368) 40
Transferred to ncome statement 11 {122) (312) (423) 24
Equity movement 517 - —- 517 17
At 30 April 1,117 791 843 2,751 3,025

The provision 15 In respect of accelerated capral allowances and general tming differences

Unrecogrused Deferred Tax Liabilibes

At 30 Apnd 2008 a deferred tax liabiity of €500,000 (2007 €574,000) related to the transfer of a UK property to inventones was not recogmised because
rollover tax relef avalable to the Group under certam condibens, which the Group intends to aval of Addibonally at 30 April 2008 a further €175,000
related to the sale of a UK property was not recognised because of roflover relef available to the Group

26 ISSUED CAPITAL

2008 2007
Authonsed €000 €000
At 1 May and 30 April 45,000,000 ordmnary
shares of 32 cents each 14,400 14,400
2008 2007 2008 2007
Aliotted, called up and fully pald Nuraber '000 Number ‘000 €000 €000
At 1 May ordinary shares of 32 cents each 28,969 29,671 9,270 9,495
Purchase of own shares 4,342 (702) {1,389) {225)
At 30 Apnl ordinary shares of 32 cents each 24,627 28,969 7,881 9,270
2008 2007
Capital Redemption Reserve Fund €000 €000
At 1 May 3,113 2,888
Purchase of own shares 1,389 225
At 30 April 4,502 3,113

The shares purchased were cancelled before the year end and therefore the nominal value of such shares was transferred to the Capital Redemption
Reserve Fund
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27 RESERVES

At 1 May 2006

Translaton adjustment ansing in year
Reduction in revaluabon surplus

At 1 May 2007

Translation adjustment ansing n year
Reducbon i revaluation surplus

At 30 Apnl 2008

The revaluation reserve 15 in respect of

Land and bulldings
Investment properties

28 RETAINED EARNINGS

Equity at beginning of year as restated
Profit retaned for the financial year
Equity dadends paid

Reduction in revaluation surplus

Actuaral gan on Group defined benefit obligabons

Deferred tax llabiity relabing to Actuanial gain on Group defined benefit pension obligabons

Purchase of own shares

At 30 Apri

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Share Premium Revaluation Currency
accournt reserve translation
€000 €000 €000
13,321 9,557 -
- 111 1,517
- {995) -
13,321 8673 1,517
- {757} (14,356)
- {187) -
13,321 7,729 {12,339}
€000
6,926
803
7,729
2008 2007
Note €000 €000
209,159 191,234
12,081 34,389
13 {10,124) (10,429}
187 -
2,012 465
(517) (140}
{25,452) {6,360)
187,346 208,159

The Group’s prncipal financial assets and habilites compnse cash, short term deposits and various tems such as trade recervables and trade payables

that anse drectly from its operations The main purpose of these financial mstruments 15 to raise finance for the Group's operations

The mam nisks ansing from the Group's financial instruments are nterest rate and foreign currency nsks

interest rate nsk

The Group's exposure to the nsk on nterest rate changes m the market relates pnmarily to the Group's customers abity to raise finance to purchase

development sites

Foretgn Currency Risk

As a resutt of significant operations in the United Kingdom and to a lessor extent the Czech Repubhic, the Group's balance sheet can be signfficantly
affected by movements in the UK£/eure and CZK/euro exchange rates The following table demonstrates the sensinaty to a reasenable possible change
in the UK sterling exchange rate, with all other vaniables held constant, of the Groups profit before tax and the Group's equity
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Increase / decrease Effect on Effect on

in UK sterfing rate profit before tax equity

€000 €000

2007 +5% (1,343) {5,896)
5% 1,485 5334

2008 +5% (995} {4,333)
5% 1,099 3,921

30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Future caprtal expenditure, none of which 1s attnbutable to the Company, approved by the directors but not provided for in these financial statements Is
as follows

2008 2007
€000 €000
Contracted for 98 472
There are no noncontracted for capital commutments at the balance sheet date
31 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
Amounts payable dunng the next twelve months i respect of operating leases are as follows
Leases on land and buldings expinng 2008 2007
€000 €000
Between one and five years 83 67

Operating leases on plant and machinery carry no future commitments

32 PENSIONS
The Group operates one defined benefit scheme in the United Kingdom

The most recent actuanal valuahons of the Abbey Group Limeted Pension and Life Assurance Scheme was carmed out as at 1 May 2005 using the
projected unt method The assumphons which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuations are those made in respect of the rate of
return on investment and the rate of mcrease in salares and pensions The assumptions made were that the rates of return on investments would exceed
the rates of salary increases by 4 5% per annum and that the rates of pension increase would be 3 25% per annum

The costs of providing UK death in service benefits, which are nsured under a separate agreement with Canada Life were paid in addition to the employer
contnbutions

As at 1 May 2005, the total value placed on the schemes' group pension plan for the purposes of the valuations amounted to €20 mullon and was
sufficient to cover 100% of the scheme's habilihes The Group 1s making contribubons into the scheme at a contrbubon rate of 15 50% This pension
scheme was closed to new entrants on 1 January 2001 With effect from 1 May 2006 pensionable salaries have been frozen and the scheme has
contracted back into the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme The Insh Scheme was wound up n Apnl 2007

The actuanal valuatons are not avalable for public inspection

ABBEY PLC, ANNUAL REPORT 2008, PAGE 36



Notes to the Group Financial Statements

30 Apnl 2008

32 PENSIONS (CONTINUED)

Defined Benefit Schemes

Actuanal valuabons in accordance with 1AS19 were camed out at 30 April 2008 by a qualified independent actuary The actuanal reports are available

to the pension scheme members only

The major assumpbons used by the actuary were
Pensionable salary growth
Pension escalaton m payment
Drscount rate
Inflabon assumption
Postretrement mortaltty {in years)
Current pensioners at 65 - males
Current pensioners at 65 female
Future pensioners at 65 - males
Future penstcners at 65 - female

The assets in the schemes and the expected long term rate of return were

Bonds
Cash and short term deposts

Farr value of defined benefit assets are as follows
As at 30 Apnl 2008

Bonds
Cash and short term deposits

Farr value of assets
Present value of scheme Jabiites n respect of active and deferred members
Defined benefit pension scheme surplus

2008 2007

Ni % pa Nil % pa
370%pa 300%pa
640 % pa 540 % pa
370%pa 300 %pa
235 235
265 265
235 235
265 265
455% 4 45%

5 00% 541%
2008 2007
€000 €'000
20,462 19,533
940 3,609
21,402 23,142
{17,414) {20,709}
3,988 2,433

The defined benefit scheme in the United Kingdom was closed to new entrants on 1 January 2001 As this scheme was closed to new entrants the age
profile of the actve mempers will nse signiiicanty causing the current serice cost to increase as the members of the scheme approach retrement

From 25 June 2003 the United Kingdom pensicn scheme became seff-admimistered The assets previously held with an insurance company were
transferred for cash to the Trustee Company which has subsequently mvested the funds n UK Gevermment Bonds The Trustee Company has an
investment policy to nvest m UK Government Sterbng Bonds to generate cash flows to match as closely as possible the labilihes of the scheme

The amounts recognised in the Group Income Statement and in the Group Statement of

Changes in Equrty are as follows
Recogmsed m income statement

Current sennce cost
Past service cost
Recognised in armving at operating profit

Actual return on scheme assets
Interest cost on scheme labities
Other finance cost

Taken to the statement of changes in equity

Actual return on scheme assets less expected return on scheme assets

Other actuanal gamns and losses

Changes in assumptons underiying the present value of the scheme habiites
Actuanal gams and losses recognised m statement of changes m equity
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32 PENSIONS (CONTINUED)
2008 2007
Changes in the far value of defined benefit obligations £000 €000
As at 1 May 17,973 20,095
Current service cost 384 501
Past service costs - 443
Interest costs 936 1,030
Benefits paid (1486) (170)
Actuanal gains {1,793) {1,180)
As at 30 April 17,414 20,709
The sensitvities regardng the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabifites are set out below
Assumphon Change n assumption Impact on scheme liabiibes
Discount rate Decrease by 0 5% Increase by 9 6%
Rate of nflabon Increase by 0 5% Increase by 4 6%
Rate of mortalty Increase by 1 year Increase by 1 6%
2008 2007
Changes i the fair value of defined benefit scheme assets €000 €000
As at 1 May 20,084 22,472
Expected return on scheme assets 931 980
Employer contnibutions 485 h88
Contributions by employees 86 107
Benefits pad (232) (277
Actuanal gains and losses 48 {728)
As at 30 April 21,402 23,142
Amourtts for the current
and previcus period 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Far value of schemne assets 21,402 23142 22,403 21,740 18,806
Presert value of defined
benefit obhgation {17,414) {20,709 (19,791) {21,905) {18,644)
Surplus/Adefict) n scheme 3988 2,433 2612 (165) 162
Expenence adjustments
ansing on scheme habdies {305) {393) 799 (143} (137)
Experience adjustments
ansing on scheme assets 43 (728} {501) 1,141 {1,643}

33 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group terminated tts contract for the purchase of a development site on 27 June 2008 as a result of the failure to meet all contractual condmons
of the transachon, which existed at the balance sheet date The contract price for the site of €1,737,000 has been reversed from land WIP with related
land creditors of €1,572,000 also reversed The Group had pad a refundable deposit amounting to €165,000 pnor to the balance sheet date which
15 now included in rade debtors Prelrminary works carned out by the Group on this site with a total value of €122,000 have been written off with the

taxation charge for the year adjusted accordngly
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements 30 Apnl 2008

34 TRANSITION TO IFRS

For all penods up to and ncledmg the year ended 30 Aprl 2007, Abbey pic, “the Group® prepared its financial statements m accordance with Insh
Generally Accepted Accountmg Practice {insh GAAP) These financial statements, for the year ended 30 Aprit 2008, are the first the Group 15 required to
prepare in accordance with Intematonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Accordingly, the Group has prepared financial statements which comply with IRFSs applicable for penods beginning on or after 1 Aprl 2006 and the
signficant accounting policies meeting those requrements are descnbed m note 6

in preparing these financiat staternents, the Group has started from an opening balance sheet as at 1 May 2006, the Group's date of transiion to IFRSs,
and made those changes m accounting policies and other restatements required by IFRS 1 for the first tme adoption of FRSs As such, this note explains
the principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its Insh GAAP balance sheet as at 1 May 2006 and its previously published Insh GAAP financial
statemerts for the year ended 30 Apnl 2007

Exemptions applied
IFRS 1 allows firstime adopters certain exemptions from the general requirement to apply IFRSs as effective for Aprl 2007 year ends respectively The
Group has taken the following exemptions

W RFS 3 ‘Business Combinabons’ has not been apphed to acquisions of subsidianes or of interest in associates and joint ventures that cccurred
before 1 May 2006

W Certain tems of property, plant and equipment were carned n the balance sheet on the basis of valuahons performed in 2005 As allowed under
IFRS1, the group has elected to regard those far values as deemed cost as at the date of the revaluation

B Cumulative currency transtation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero as at 1 May 2006

B Curnulative actuaral gans and losses on pensions and other post employment benefits are recogmsed in full equity at the date of transition to
[FRS This is the same treatment as under Insh GAAP

The previously reported balance sheet for the penod ended 30 Apnl 2006 under Insh GAAP 15 reconciled to the restated balances under International
Financial Reporting Standards (1RFS™) as follows

Group Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 30th Apnl 2006
Pravious
Insh GAAP FRS
30 April 2006 30 April 2006
Note (1} Note{2) MNota(3) Note(d) Note{5] Note(s} Nocte(7)  Note(B)
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 34,867 {12) - - - - - - - 34,855
lnvestment property - 2,392 - - - - - - - 2,392
Ivestment m jomt venture 2,398 - - - - - - - - 2,398
Investments - - - - - 7 - - - 7
Pension benefit obligations - - - 2,612 - - - - - 2612
37,265 2,380 - 2612 - 7 - - - 427264
Current assets
Trade and other recenvables 8,078 - - - - - - - - 8,078
Inventones 211,881 - - - - - - - - 211,881
lvestments 7 - - - - ] - - - -
Cash at cash equivalents 67,745 - - - - - -~ - - 67,745
287,711 - - - - {n - - - 287,704
TOTAL ASSETS 324976 2,380 - 2,612 - - - - - 329,968
LIABILITIES
Current fabilibes
Trade and other payables (100,404 - - - 4,792 - 2,273 (128) ~ 193,467
Income tax payable - - - - 4,792) - - - - {4,792)
Provisions - - - - - - {1,726) - - {1,726)
{100,404 - - - - - 547 (128) - 199,985
NET CURRENT ASSETS 187,307 - - - - 7) 547 128} - 187,719
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34 TRANSITION TO [FRS (CONTINUED)
Previous
trish GAAP IFRS
30 April 2006 30 April 2006
Noto[l] Motn(2] MNote(3) Mote{4] Note{S) Note(§} Note{7) Noto i8]
€000 €000 €000 £000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Non-current liabilitres
Deferred taxation {1,248) - {960) {736) - - - - - {2,944)
Prowsions - - - - - - (547 - - (547)
Pension benefit obfigations 1,876 - - {1,876) - - - - - -
628 - (9600 (2,612} - - {547) - - {3,491)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (99,776) - (9601 (2,612) - - - {128} - {103,476)
NET ASSETS 225,200 2,380 {960) - - - - {128) - 226,492
EQUITY
Equety attnbutable te equity holders of the parent
Issued capital 9,495 - - - - - - - - 9,455
Share premum 13,321 - - - - - - - - 13321
Revaluahon reserve 7177 2,380 - - - - - - - 9,857
Cther reserves
Caprtal redemption reserve 2,888 - - - - - - - - 2,888
Currency translaton {957} - - - - - - - g57 -
Retained eamings 193,276 - {960) - - - - 128) 1957) 191,231
TOTAL EQUITY 225,200 2,380 {960) - - = - {128) - 226,452
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 324,976 2,380 - 2,612 - - - - - 329,968
Note (1) In accordance with IFRS1 First time adoption of Internabional Financial Reporting Standards', a company property n ireland was
revalued to farr value on transtion to IFRS A portion s let to third parbies and s therefore classified as an investment property
in accordance with lAS40 'lnvestment Properties’
In accordance with [AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ the investment properties held by the Group amounbing to
€2,392,000 are presented separately on the balance sheet, having been previously disclosed as investment properties within
fixed assets
Note (2) In accordance with IAS 12 Taxation', a deferred taxabion habilty 15 recognised as a result of the farr value measurement of
trading and investment properties
Note (3) In accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, the surplus on the Group's defined benefit pension scheme of €2,612,000,
gross of the related deferred taxation liability 15 presented under the ‘Noncurrent assets’ balance sheet heading The deferred
tax habulity of €736,000 pertaining to the defined benefit pension scheme surplus 1s presented as part of the deferred tax
hiabity batance under the ‘Non-current habiles' balance sheet heading
Note (4} In accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements' the group liability for corporate tax amounting to €4,792,000
15 presented separately on the balance sheet
Note (5} In accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’ certan investments are reclassified to non current assets
Note (6) In accordance with 1AS 37 ‘Prowisions and Contingencies’ mantenance prowisions amounting to €2,273,000, previousty
recorded n creditors and accruals under Insh GAAP, are reclassified to current lability provisions of €1,726,000 and Non-
current hability prowisians of €547,000 presented separately on the balance sheet
Note {7) In accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits', a liability 15 recognised i respect of compensated absences accrued by
employees at the reporting date No accrual for this liabity was previously recorded under Insh GAAP
Note {8) In accordance with the exemption allowable under IFRS 1 Fwrst-tme adopton of Internabenal Financial Reporting Standards', the

cumulative translabion difierence amounting to €957,000 at the transibion date 1s transferred to retamed earnings
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34 TRANSITION TO IFRS {CONTINUED)

Group consohdated income statement

for the year ended 30 Apnl 2007
Previous
Insh GAAP [FRS
30 April 2007 Note (1) Note {2) Nots (3) 30 April 2007
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Continuing obhigations
Revenue 192,201 - - - 192,201
Cost of sales {135,492 - - - {135,452
Group gross profit 56,709 - - - 56,709
Administrative expenses {12,881) - (148} {5) {13,034}
Operating profit 43,828 - {148} (5) 43,675
Finance income 1,601 8 - - 1,609
Finance costs 4 {8) - - (12)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxabon 45,425 - {148) (5) 45,272
Income tax expense (10,883} - - - (10,883)
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent 34,542 - {148) (51 34,389

Note (1} In accordance with IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements', finance ncome and finance costs are presented separately
on the face of the income statement.

Note (2} In accordance with |AS 16 ‘Property Plant & Equipment’ the Group has recognised an addtional deprecsation charge of
€148,000 on trading properties for the year ended 30 Apni 2007

Note (3} An expense amounting to €133,000 1s recognised n respect of accrued compensated absences at the reporting
date This expense Is offset by the reversal of the adjusted compensated absences accrual of €128,000 at the date of
franstbon to IFRS in the income statement for the pencd ended 30 April 2006 No accrual for this liability was previously
recorded under Insh GAAP

Group Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 30th April 2007
Previous
Insh GAAP IFRS
30 Apnl 2007 30 Apnl 2007
Note {1) Note{2) Note(3) Note (4] Note{5) Note(6) Note{7] Note{B8) Note (9}
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 36,239 12) - - - (148} - - - - 36079
Investment property - 2,392 - - - - - - - - 2.392
Investment m joint venture 2,398 - - - - - - - - - 2,358
Investments - - - - - - 7 - - - 7
Pension benefit obigations - - - 2433 - - - - - - 2,433
38,637 2,380 - 2,433 - {148) 7 - ~ - 43,309
Current assets
Trade and other recervables 13,135 - - - - - - - - - 13135
inventones 232,721 - - - - - - - - - 232,721
Investments 7 - - - - - 7} - - - -
Cash at cash equvalerts 32,085 - - - - - - - - - 32085
277,958 - - - - - {7} - ~ - 277,951
TOTAL ASSETS 316,595 2,380 - 2433 - {148) - - - - 321,260
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34 TRANSITION TO [FRS (CONTINUED)

LIABLITIES
Current kabilites
Trade and other payables {73,049) - - - 4532 - - 133) 2,702 - {65,548}
Income tax payable - - - - 4,532) - - - - - 4532
Provisions - - - - - - - - {2,562 - {2,562}
(73,049 - - - - - - 1133} 140 - {73,042
NET CURRENT ASSETS 204,909 - - - - - 7) 1133} 140 - 204909
Norr-current liabilities
Deferred taxaton {1,321 - (968} {730 - - - - - - {3,029
Prowisions - - - - - - - - {140 - (140)
Pension benefit cbigations 1,703 - - 11,703} - - - - - - =
376 - (968) (2,433 - - = - 140 - 13165
TOTAL LIABILITIES (72,673 - (968)  (2,433) - - - (133} - - (76,207
NET ASSETS 243,922 2,380 (968) - - (148) - {133) - - 245,053
EQUITY
Equity attnbutable to equity
holders of the parent
Issued capdal 9,270 - - - - - - - - - 9,270
Share premurn 13,321 - - - - - - - - - 13321
Revatuation reserve 6,293 2,380 - - - - - - - - 8673
Cther reserves
Capital redemphon reserve 3,113 - - - - - - - - - 3n3
Curency transiabon 571 - - - - - - - - 945 1,517
Retained earmings 211,354 - {968} - - 148) - {133} - (946} 209,159
TOTAL EQUITY 243,922 2,380 (968} - — {148) - {133) - - 245,053
TOTAL EQUITY AND UABILMIES 316,595 2,380 - 2,433 - (148) = - - - 321,260
Note {1} In accordance with IFRS] Furst ime adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards', a company property in Irefand was
revatued to far value on transiion to IFRS A portion 15 let to third parties and 15 therefore classified as an investment property
mn accordance with IAS40 Investment Properbes’
In accordance with IAS 1 'Presentatton of Financial Statements' the investment properties heid by the Group amounting to
€2,392,000 are presented separately on the balance sheet, having been previously disclosed as investment properhies within
fixed assets
Note {2} in accordance with 1AS 12 Taxaton', a deferred taxaton habilty 1s recognised as a result of the far value measurement of
trading and investment properties
Note (3} In accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits', the surplus on the Group's defined benefit penston scheme of €2,433,000,
gross of the related deferred taxation hahiity 1s presented under the ‘Neon-current assets’ balance sheet headmg The deferred
tax habiity of €730,000 pertaining to the defined benefit pension scheme surplus 1s presented as part of the deferred tax
liability balance under the Noncument liabibes’ balance sheet heading
Note (4)  In accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’ the group habifity for corporate tax amounting to €4,532,000
15 presented separately on the balance sheet
Note {5} In accordance with LAS 16 'Property Plant & Equipment’ the group has recognised an addrbonal depreciation charge of €148,000
on rading propertes for the year ended 30 Apni 2007
Note {6) In accordance with {AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ certam investments are reclassfied to non current assets
Note {7) In accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits', a kabilty 1s recogmised n respect of compensated absences accrued by
employees at the reporting date No accrual for this hability was previously recorded under fnsh GAAP
Note {8} In accordance with IAS 37 ‘Provisions and Conbngencies’ mamtenance provisions amounting to €2,702,000, previously
recorded n credtors and accruals under Insh GAAP, are reclassified to current hability prowisions of €2,562,000 and Non-
current fiabilty prowisions of €140,000 presented separately on the balance sheet
Note (9) In accordance with the exempton allowable under IFRS 1 First-ime adophon of international Financial Reporting Standards’, the

cumulative translahon difference amounting to €946,000 at the transrhon date 1s transferred to retamed earmings
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Company Balance Sheet

At 30 April 2008

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets
Financial assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS (amounts failing due withun one year)

Trade and other creditors

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Called up share capital

Share prermium account
Revaluation reserve

Other reserves

- Capital redemption reserve fund
- Currency translabion

Profit and loss account

Approved by the Board on 9 July 2008
C H GALLAGHER, Chairman
B R HAWKINS, Drrector
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Note

C5

cé

c7
c8
c8

c7
c8
C9

2008 2007
€000 €000
2,054 2,293
23,530 23,530
25,584 25,823
561 6,643
1,231 559
1,792 7,202
(1,318) (900)
474 6,302
26,058 32,125
7,881 9,270
13321 13,321
204 443
4,502 3,113
(383) (383)
533 6,361
26,058 32,125




Notes to the Company Financial Statements 30 Apnl 2008

C1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial statements which have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to include the revaluation of nvestment properbes and
are prepared n accordance with apphcable standards and are stated i Euro A summary of the more mportant Company accounting poficies 1s set out
below

The parert company has avaled of the exemphons in Section 148(8) of the Companies Act, 1963 from laymg ts mdvdual profit and loss account before
the annual general meetng and the exemption n Section 7{L A} of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986 from filing ts mdwdual profit and loss account
with the Registrar of Companies

The prncipal actvty of the Company 1s to act as a holding company

Under Financial Reporting Standard 1, the Company 15 exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement on the grounds that its consolidated
financial statements, which include the Company are publcly avarlable

{a) Foreign currencies
Monetary assets and habifhes denorminated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange rufing on the balance sheet date
Exchange gains or losses are deaft with in the profit and loss account Investments in subsidiary undertaking, including unsecured loan stock
denominated in foreign currencies, are translated and recorded at the rate of exchange ruting at the date of the transacbon

(b) Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Investment in subsidiary undertakings are mcluded i the financial statements at the lower of oniginal cost and the directors’ estmate of the value
to the company of the investment

{¢) Fixed assets
Properhes cccupied by the company are classified as trading properties and are revalued triennially by external valuers on an open market value
basis The directors review the valuations of all properties annually Revalusbon gams, f matenial, are mcorperated in the financial statements and
are charged to the property revaluabon reserve accordingly Any impairment loss 1s firstly charged to the revaluiabon reserve to the extent that a
surplus exists and thereafter to the profit and loss account

C2 PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 2008 2007
€'000 €000
This1s arnved at after chargmg
Directors’ remuneration 193 164
Audrtors’ remuneraton
- audrt fees 20 15
-further advisory services 38 -
C3 TANGIBLE ASSETS 2008 2007
€000 €000
Freehold land and buildings
Cost or valuation
At 1 May 2,293 2,293
Revaluation (239) -
At 30 Apnl 2,054 2,293
C4 FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS 2008 2007
€000 €000
Shares in unbsted subsidiary undertakings at cost 23,530 23,530
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

30 Apnl 2008

C4 FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The shares in subsidiary undertakings represent the full amount of called up share capdal in those undertakings, all of which are ordinary shares The

prncipal substdiary undertalangs are as follows

incorporated in the Nature Registered
Republic of lreland of business office
Ciarsand Investment holding 9 Abbey House
company Main Street
Cloneg, Co Meath
Abbey Holdings Limited as above as above
Dwale Umited Norrading as above !
Kingscroft Developments Limited Residental housing and :
land development as above |
Incorporated in the Nature Registered
United Kingdom of business office
Abbey Group Limited Investment holding Abbey House
company 2 Southgate Road
Potters Bar
Hertfordshire
ENG 5DU
England
Abbey Developments Limited Residental housing and '
land development as above
Abbey nvestments Lmited Property investment as above
M & J Engineers Limited Plant hire Cashel House
Cadwell Lane
Hitchin
Hertfordshire
SG4 0sQ
England
Incarporated in the Nature Registered
Czech Republic of business offica
Abbey, sro Reswdental housing and Karlovo namest 2097
land development 120 00 Prague 2
Czech Republic
The principal place of business of all subsidiary undertakings 15 i the country of ncorparation 1
CS DEBTORS 2008 2007
€'000 €000
Amounts faling due within one year
Caorporation tax 102 -
Amounts owed by subswiary undertakings 437 6,643
Prepayments and accrued mcome 22 -
561 6,643
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C6 TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS 2008 2007
€000 €000
Amounts faling due within one year
Value added tax - 34
Corporabon tax - 402
Other creditors 1,004 290
Accruals and deferred mcome 224 174
1,318 900
C7 ISSUED CAPITAL
The Authonsed, afiotted, cafled up and fully pad issued capttal 1s shown i note 26 of the Group Report and Accounts
The caprtal redemption reserve fund 1s shown in nate 26 of the Group Report and Accounts
C8 RESERVES Share Premium  Revaluation Currency
account reserve translation
€000 €000 €000
At 1 May 2007 13,321 413 (383)
Translation adustment ansmg in year - {239) -
Reducton in revaluation surplus = = =
At 30 Apnl 2008 13,321 204 {383)
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 2008 2007
€000 €000
Profit brought forward at beginming of year 6,361 12,858
Profit retained for the financial year 29,748 10,292
Dradends paid {10,124} (10,429}
Purchase of own shares {25,452} {6,360)
At 30 Apnl 533 6,361

ABBEY PLC, ANNUAL REPORT 2008, PAGE 46




Notice of Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meehng of
Abbey plc will be held m The Conrad Dubfin, Earlsfort Terrace,
Publin 2, at 10 30 am on Fnday, 3rd October, 2008 for the
following purposes

Ordinary Business

B To consider the Company’s Accounts and the Reports of
the Dwrectors and the Auditors for the year ended 30th
Apnl 2008,

W To reelect as a Director Mr John F Hogan (Member of
Audit Committee and Remuneraticn Committee} wheo
retres at the Meeting under Arhicle 98 of the Company's
Articles of Associaticn,

B To authonse the Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Audrtors,

B To transact any other ordinary business of the Company

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutons

AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“That the Directors be and they are hereby generaly and
unconditonally authonsed to exercise ali powers of the Company
to allot relevant securhes {as defined for the purposes of
Section 20 of the Companies (Amendment} Act, 1983) up to an
aggregate nommnal amount of €6,519,362 56 provided that this
authortty shall expire upon the termination of the Annua! General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2009 save that the
Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement
which would or might require relevant securiies to be allotted
after such expiry and the Directors may allot relevant securthes
n pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the authonty
conferred hereby had not expired "

AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTICN
“That, subject to the passing of the previous resolution, the
Directors be and they are hereby empowered pursuant to Section
24 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983 to allot equity
securties (within the meaning of Section 23 of the Companies
{Amendment} Act, 1983) for cash pursuant to the authorty
conferred by the previous resoluiion as if sub-Section (1) of the
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said Section 23 did not apply to any such allotment provided that
thus power shall be fimited
(a) to the allgtment of equity securthes in connection with a
nghts sssue in favour of shareholders where the equity
securties respectively atinbutable to the mterests of alt
shareholders are proportonate (as nearly as may be} to
the respective numbers of shares held by them, and
b} to the allotment (otherwse than pursuant to sub-
paragraph (a) above} of equiy secunties up to an
aggregate nominal value of €394,031
This authorty shall expire on the date of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution
save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer
or agreement which would or might require equity secunes to
be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity
securties in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the
power conferred hereby had not expired ”

By order of the Board
st September 2008
Dawid J Dawson, Secretary

Registered Office
25/28 North Wall Quay, Dubln 1
{Reg No 9245 Republic of Irefand)




Notice of Meeting

Continued

Notes

1 Any member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may
appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vate

2 Aproxy need not be a member of the Company

3 Prowes should reach the Company's Registrars, Computershare
Investor Services (ireland) Lmied, PO Box 954, Heron House,
Corng Road, Sandyford Industrial Estate, Dublin 18 not less than 43
hours before the tme appointed for the helding of the meebng

4 There wil be avalable for mspection by members at 25/28 North
Wall Quay, Dublin 1, during usual business hours from the date of
this notice and at The Conrad Dublin, Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2,
for fifteen minutes prior to and ungl the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting, coples of contracts of service of Directors with the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries
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The registers requred to be mantaned by the Company under
Section 60 and 80 of the Compames Act, 1950 shall be avalable
for inspection to any person attending the Annual General Meeting
for fifteen minutes prior to and untl the conclusion of the sad
meetng

There have been no changes to the Directors and Secretary
Interests i the shares of Abbey plc as disclosed in the Drectors'
report dated 9th July 2008 at the date of this Nobce of Meeting 1st
September 2008
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